Public Document Pack

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

To: Councillor Milne, Convener; Councillor Finlayson, Vice Convener; and Councillors
Boulton, Corall, Grant, Greig, Jaffrey, Lawrence, MacGregor, Jean Morrison MBE,
Samarai, Jennifer Stewart, Sandy Stuart, Thomson and Townson.

Also (as local members) :- Councillors Malik and Malone (for item 1); and
Councillors Cameron, Delaney and lronside (for item 2).

Town House,
ABERDEEN, 28 April 2014

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(VISITS)

The Members of the PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(VISITS) are requested to meet in THE TOWN HOUSE on FRIDAY, 2 MAY 2014 at 1.30
pm.

JANE G. MACEACHRAN
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

BUSINESS

WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF REFUSAL

1 Auchenfroe, 267 North Deeside Road, Milltimber, Proposed New Dwellinghouse
within the Curtilage (Pages 1 - 34)

Reference No — 140148
Planning application documents can be viewed here —
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?140148

WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF APPROVAL

2 Visit to Kingswells Primary School in connection with - Fairley Road (Land To East
Of), Kingswells, Proposed Construction of 7 Detached Units, 28 Semi-Detached
Units and 11 Terrace Houses With Associated Access Roads, Drainage and Suds
Storage (Pages 35 - 82)




Reference No — 130288
Planning application documents can be viewed here —
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp? 130288

Note: (One) The Planning Officials in attendance on the visits can be contacted by mobile
phone, the number is :- 07802 323986.
(Two) The transport for the visits will depart the Town House from the Broad Street
entrance at 1.30 pm prompt.

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Martyn
Orchard, tel. (52)3097 or email morchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk



Agenda ltem 1

Planning Development Management Committee

AUCHENFROE, 267 NORTH DEESIDE ROAD,
MILLTIMBER

PROPOSED NEW DWELLINGHOUSE WITHIN
THE CURTILAGE

For: Mr Frank Selbie

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission ~ Advert : Can't notify neighbour(s)
Application Ref. : P140148 Advertised on: 26/02/2014

Application Date: 10/02/2014 Committee Date: 24 April 2014

Officer: Gavin Evans Community Council : No response
Ward : Lower Deeside (M Boulton/A Malone/M received

Malik)

& ¢ O\Q\‘\

RN )
A @; ﬁ\\&‘&\\

BN 5

RECOMMENDATION:

Refuse

Page 1



DESCRIPTION

The application site, which extends to approximately 4500sq/0.45ha, is located
on the southern side of North Deeside Road, Milltimber, near to its junction with
Contlaw Road, and forms part of the extensive residential curtilage pertaining to
number 267, also known as ‘Auchenfroe’. To the south of the site is the disused
Deeside railway line, now a popular public recreational route known as the
Deeside Way, while to the east and west are the donor property and the
residential plot of 265a North Deeside Road, respectively. Auchenfroe is currently
accessed via North Deeside Road, with a driveway leading from the north-
western corner of the plot to form a loop in front of the house. The area to the
east of that driveway features a number of large mature trees, both deciduous
and evergreen, which allow only occasional and partial glimpses of the existing
house at Auchenfroe from North Deeside Road, even when deciduous trees are
not in leaf. The boundary between Auchenfroe and 265B is defined by a beech
hedge which, although deciduous, retains leaves in winter months to provide
screening.

The surrounding area to the north, east and west is predominantly residential in
character. To the south, beyond the Deeside Way, the land towards the River
Dee is in agricultural use.

The application site is within a wider area covered by a Tree Preservation Order
(TPO), which requires that works to any existing trees must be approved by the
planning authority in advance.

RELEVANT HISTORY

Most recently, an application (ref.P120033) sought detailed planning permission
for the construction of a single dwellinghouse on a different site from that
currently proposed, within a plot to be formed using parts of the rear gardens of
nos. 267/Auchenfroe and 265a North Deeside Road. That application was
refused in accordance with officer recommendation at the Planning Development
Management Sub-committee meeting of 19™ July 2012. Reasons stated made
reference to the proposed development’s ‘inappropriate siting and relationship
with its surroundings’ failing to demonstrate due regard for its context and the
general settlement pattern of the surrounding area. The risk of setting an
undesirable precedent was also cited as a reason for refusal. A subsequent
planning appeal was dismissed in January 2013, with the reporter appointed by
the Directorate for Planning and Environmental Appeals finding that the proposal
did not accord with the provisions of the development plan(specifically Policies
D1 and H1 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan) and that no other material
considerations warranted approval despite the provisions of the development
plan.

An earlier application, seeking Outline Planning Permission for the construction

of a new house on a site largely similar to that currently proposed was refused in
August 2007 (ref.A6/1699), citing reasons of over-development, tree loss and

Page 2



adverse impact on surrounding landscape and the residential character of the
area. An associated appeal (ref. P/PPA/100/0388) was dismissed in January
2008, with the appointed reporter making reference to the uncharacteristically
close spacing of the house to those immediately adjacent, and also concluding
that the tree loss necessary at that time would result in an adverse impact on the
landscape character of the area. This decision concluded that the proposal at
that time would not accord with the provisions of the development plan, and that
there were no material considerations which the reporter considered would
warrant approval. It is noted that consideration of that proposal took place against
a different development plan context, with the 1991 Aberdeen City District-Wide
Local Plan still in force, and the 2008 Aberdeen Local Plan at Finalised stage.

PROPOSAL

This application seeks detailed planning permission for the construction of a
single detached dwellinghouse in a new plot, to be formed via the sub-division of
the existing plot at Auchenfroe, 267 North Deeside Road.

The proposed new dwelling would be sited approximately 68m back from the site
frontage onto North Deeside Road, with its north-facing elevation broadly in line
with that of Auchenfroe. It would be constructed across 2 storeys, incorporating a
double-width integral garage and featuring twin gables on both front and rear
elevations. Elevations would be finished with a combination of natural granite and
smooth white render, while the roof would be finished in natural slate. Windows
and doors would be formed with aluminium-clad timber frames.

The existing access point from North Deeside Road would be shared with
Auchenfroe, however a separate driveway would branch off from around 5m
along the existing drive to provide a segregated route to the new dwelling.

Supporting Documents

All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this
application can be viewed on the Counci's website at -
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?140148

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first
page of this report.

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE

The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management
Committee because it has attracted more than 5 letters of objection. Accordingly,
the application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation.
CONSULTATIONS

Roads Projects Team — No objection.
Environmental Health — No observations.

Page 3



Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) — Further information
requested in relation to means of surface water drainage and the watercourse in
the northern end of the site.

Education, Culture & Sport (Archaeology) — No response.

Community Council — No response.

REPRESENTATIONS

10 letters of representation have been received. Of these 6 expressed objections,
with 4 in support of the proposal. These representations raise the following
matters —

Support
1. General support for the application.

2. The proposal would provide further housing in the area without spoiling the
its setting.
3. The proposal is in keeping with the area.

Obijection

1. Adverse impact on privacy, amenity and sunlight to 265A, with
overshadowing in the afternoons, and windows overlooking the property.

2. ‘Borrowing amenity’ from 265A.

3. Proposal is motivated by financial gain, to the detriment of local residents.

4. Excessive and disproportionate loss of protected trees (covered by a Tree
Preservation Order).

5. Previous refusal(s), which made reference to removal of trees, are
highlighted.

6. Visual impact arising from the presence of the new building and the loss of
trees.

7. The proposed house would not fit comfortably within this plot, being
uncharacteristically close to neighbouring houses.

8. The proposal is not consistent with the Council’s criteria for residential
development, relating to size, proximity to adjoining properties and impact
on the amenity of those properties.

9. The style and size of the house is too big, particularly in terms of the plot
width, being ‘shoehorned’ in to the available land.

10. Traffic on North Deeside Road would be increased, with a corresponding
increase in the number of vehicles slowing to turn in at this access.

11.Highlights the amount of trees assessed as dead or dying, and suggests
that better care and maintenance could have enabled their retention.

12.Notes that an existing burn running across the north of the site is not
shown on all plans.

13. Materials used do not reflect the style of the houses on either side.

14.Notes conflict with policies D1, D2, NE5 and H1 of the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan (ALDP).

15.Notes conflict with the Council’s Supplementary Guidance on ‘The Sub-
division and Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages’.

Page 4



16.Highlights the arrangement of 265A, which has communal living space
and bedrooms at first floor level, facing towards the proposed new house.

PLANNING POLICY

National Policy and Guidance

Scottish Planning Policy (SPP)

SPP indicates that infill sites within existing settlements can often make a useful
contribution to the supply of housing land. It further states that proposals for infill
sites should respect the scale, form and density of the surroundings and enhance
the character and amenity of the community. The Individual and cumulative
effects of infill development should be sustainable in relation to social, economic,
transport and other relevant physical infrastructure and should not lead to over
development.

Aberdeen Local Development Plan

Policy T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development
New developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been
taken to minimise the traffic generated.

Maximum car parking standards are set out in Supplementary Guidance on
Transport and Accessibility and detail the standards that different types of
development should provide.

Policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking — States that to ensure high
standards of design, new development must be designed with due consideration
for its context, and should make a positive contribution to its setting. This policy
applies not only to the external appearance of a development, but also to its
siting in relation to existing buildings and the relationship between buildings and
their surrounding spaces.

Policy D2: Design and Amenity

This policy outlines a series of criteria for new residential development, with the
aim of ensuring an acceptable level of amenity for residents of new development
and those residents of existing adjacent dwellings. These relate to such issues as
privacy, the incorporation of both a street frontage and a private frontage, access
to gardens/balconies/other amenity areas, restricting the over-dominance of car
parking etc.

Policy D6: Landscape

Development will not be acceptable unless it avoids... significantly adversely
affecting landscape character and elements which contribute to, or provide, a
distinct sense of place which points to being either in or around Aberdeen or a
particular part of it.

Policy H1: Residential Areas

Page 5



Within existing residential areas, proposals for new residential development will
be acceptable in principle, provided it;
» does not constitute over-development;
= does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of
the surrounding area;
= complies with supplementary guidance on curtilage splits (entitled ‘The
sub-division and redevelopment of residential curtilages’)

Policy H3: Density
The City Council will seek an appropriate density of development on all housing
allocations and windfall sites.

Policy NE5: Trees and Woodlands

States that there is a presumption against all activities and development that will
result in the loss of, or damage to, established trees and woodlands that
contribute significantly to nature conservation, landscape character or local
amenity, including ancient and semi-natural woodland which is irreplaceable.

Appropriate measure should be taken for the protection and long-term
management of existing trees and new planting both during and after
construction. Native trees and woodlands should be planted in new development.

Policy R7: Low and Zero Carbon Buildings

All new buildings must install low and zero carbon generating technologies to
reduce the predicted carbon dioxide emissions by at least 15% below the level
set by 2007 building standards.

Supplementary Guidance

The Council’s supplementary planning guidance documents relating to “The Sub-
division and Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages’ and ‘Low and Zero Carbon
Buildings’ are of relevance to the assessment of this application.

Other Relevant Material Considerations
The matters raised in representations, where raising legitimate planning
considerations, are material to the assessment of this application.

EVALUATION

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Zoning

The application site lies within a predominantly residential area, which is reflected
in its ‘H1 Residential’ zoning the Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP),

Page 6



where policy H1 shall apply. Within such areas, the principle of further residential
development will be accepted, provided those criteria set out in policy H1 can be
satisfied. These criteria are set out in the ‘Planning Policy’ section of this report,
above.

The question of whether the proposal represents ‘over-development’ for the
purposes of assessment against policy H1 will be addressed in the ‘density’
section of this report, below.

The proposal relates to the sub-division of an existing residential curtilage and
so, for the purposes of assessment against policy H1 (Residential) of the ALDP,
it is established that the proposal does not involve the loss of any open space as
defined in the Aberdeen Open Space Audit 2010.

Policy H1 also requires that new development does not result in an unacceptable
impact on the character or amenity of the surrounding area. The area
surrounding the application site is characterised by large detached residential
properties, set within generous long curtilages, stretching back from North
Deeside Road. It is understood that there has been significant change in the
formerly very regular arrangement of properties over time. The earliest properties
were set in plots which stretched from North Deeside Road to the edge of the
Deeside Way (the former Deeside Railway line), and Auchenfroe is arguably the
best-preserved example of that arrangement. Over time, a series of ‘curtilage
splits’ has gradually eroded the size of the respective curtilages and somewhat
altered the character of the area. Nevertheless, whilst the arrangement of plots
has become less regular over time, the immediate context of the development
site remains characterised by detached houses set within large plots in mature
woodlands. Issues relating to the proposal’s impact on character and amenity will
be considered in turn, before a conclusion is reached later in this report.

Impact on amenity

The proposed new house would be sited in such a way as to present a clear
‘public face’ towards North Deeside Road, with a private face looking south onto
extensive rear garden grounds. Provision for car parking and turning areas would
not dominate the site. With respect to privacy, the proposed new dwelling initially
included two east-facing bedroom windows at first-floor level, looking towards
265A North Deeside Road (at a distance of approx. 11.5m) and over the rear
garden of that property. These have since been removed from the proposal.
There remains a first-floor bedroom window in the western elevation, facing
towards Auchenfroe, at a distance of approximately 12.5m from the eastern face
of its northern wing. That elevation includes several windows which, according to
the plans approved in 2008 for the construction of the extension to Auchenfroe,
look out from an upper hallway, a bathroom and a bedroom respectively. The
applicant’'s agent has confirmed that the northernmost window in that elevation
relates to a bedroom. The distance between the respective bedroom windows is
estimated at 15m, and whilst they are offset at an angle of around 35 degrees,
the side elevations of the respective dwellings would directly face one another.
The Council's adopted Supplementary Guidance on ‘The Sub-division and
Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages’ recommends a minimum separation of

Page 7



18m between the windows of existing and proposed habitable rooms. Reduced
distances will apply where the elevations of buildings are offset at an angle to
one another, however the guidance makes no allowance for windows being offset
in directly facing elevations. As a result, the proposal is not fully compliant with
the guidance relating to privacy in the Council's ‘Sub-division and
Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages’ Supplementary Guidance, however it is
considered that there is a reasonable case that a shorter window-to-window
distance may be appropriate given the 35 degree offset between the windows
concerned.

The Council’s Supplementary Guidance on this topic also states that windows to
habitable rooms should not look our directly over, or down into, areas used as
private amenity space by residents of adjoining dwellings. In this case, any
overlooking to private gardens has been addressed through the removal of
windows in the east-facing elevation of the house. West-facing windows in the
new house would overlook less-private areas of the plot, immediately in front of
the house and including space for the parking of cars.

Garden grounds afforded to Auchenfroe and the new dwelling as a result of the
proposed development would remain of an appropriate size, comfortably
exceeding the minimum specifications set out in the Council’'s supplementary
guidance.

The separation between the dwellings is considered sufficient to ensure that new
and existing houses will be afforded good levels of daylight and sunlight, with no
undue obstruction.

Density

As noted in the ‘zoning’ section of this report, the local area is characterised by
detached dwellings set within large plots. The current plot of Auchenfroe, at
10,000sgm/1.0ha is amongst the largest in the immediate area, and the sub-
division of the plot in the manner proposed would result in both Auchenfroe and
the proposed new house benefitting from extensive plots of 0.45ha and 0.55ha
respectively, which would remain favourably comparable in size to those seen in
the surrounding area. On a straightforward assessment of the size of the
resultant plots, and the proportion of those plots which would remain
undeveloped, it is clear that the proposal does not represent overdevelopment for
the purposes of assessment against policies H1(Residential Areas) and H3
(Density) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. It should be noted that
consideration of the more complex relationship between the proposed new
house, its associated curtilage and the surrounding buildings and spaces is given
in later sections of this report.

Design/siting

The Council’'s adopted Supplementary Guidance on ‘The Sub-division and
Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages’ sets out key considerations in the
assessment of development proposals of this type. This document notes that the
construction of new dwellings within established areas will affect the overall
density and pattern of development in the surrounding area, and that the

Page 8



acceptability of proposals will be dependent on the general form of development
in the locality. Consideration must be given to the effect the dwelling may have
on the character of the area formed by the intricate relationship between
buildings and their surrounding spaces created by gardens and other features.

The frontage of the proposed dwelling is broadly in line with that of the adjacent
Auchenfroe and, whilst there has been a degree of variation in siting due to
incremental development of individual new houses, the proposal is considered to
be appropriately sited with regards to the notional ‘building line’, such as it is.

The design of the proposed new house is clearly influenced by the proportions of
the site which, though large, is very long and relatively narrow in relative terms.
As a result, there are large areas of undeveloped space to the front and rear of
the proposed house, but the new house would be very close to its boundaries on
either side. Whilst there are several previous instances of residential plots being
sub-divided in the surrounding area, and in those cases the siting of any new
buildings has allowed for an appropriate separation between buildings, ensuring
that the open low-density woodland character of the area could be retained.

The proposed new house would be positioned approximately 7.5 from 265A and
6m from Auchenfroe at its closest points. Currently, Auchenfroe is separated
from its nearest neighbours by approximately 11.5 to the west and 30.5m to the
west. Whilst properties at Station Road East are more closely sited, those
properties are set within shorter, narrower plots, and are seen in a different
context by being accessed off Station Road East. The close proximity of these
three properties (Auchenfroe, the new house and 265A) would be
uncharacteristic in this immediate context, and raises

Whilst there is no right to a ‘view’ as such, the general aspect afforded to a
property is a relevant consideration, and it is considered that orientation of the
existing house at 265A is such that the new house would be placed in a very
prominent position, in close proximity to the mutual boundary. This would
exacerbate the uncharacteristically close siting of these houses, as the south-
western face of 265A is its most extensively glazed elevation.

It is apparent that a new house on this site would be unable to simultaneously
respect the notional ‘building line’ formed by the positioning of houses within their
respective plots whilst also maintaining an appropriate separation from those
same neighbouring dwellings.

Separate from the siting of the house in relation to its surroundings is the design
and finish of the house itself. The composition and styling of the proposed
dwelling, which features double gables on both front and rear elevations, are
reflective of Auchenfroe, which itself features a double gable arrangement on its
south-facing elevation. The use of a natural slate roof and natural granite is used
at ground floor level on front and rear elevations, and is also used to help break
up the elongated side elevations. The use of natural slate would similarly mirror
the finishing of Auchenfroe, and the style of the roof is consistent with those
commonly seen in the surrounding area.

Page 9



Trees/Landscape

The submitted tree survey identifies a total of 80 trees either within the
application site or immediately adjacent. The accompanying report recommends
the removal of a total of 33 trees, of which 19 (11 category-C and 8 category-B)
would be removed to directly facilitate the development. 14 further trees are
recommended for removal on the basis of their current condition, with many
either dead or diseased. There are 8 category-A trees within the site, all of which
would be retained. These trees are all covered by a Tree Preservation Order
(TPO). For the avoidance of doubt, the effect of a TPO is to require any works to
trees, including removals, to be first authorised by the planning authority.

As noted previously, the Auchenfroe site is well screened from North Deeside
Road due to the existing tree cover, and those existing trees make a significant
contribution to the local landscape character. That new driveway, though
constructed using a ‘no-dig’ technique to minimise impact on tree root systems,
would require the removal of a 7 existing trees, of which 6 are category-C and
one is category-B. The Council’'s Environmental Planner advises that, even with
the use of a no-dig methodology, the maturity of the trees affected is such that
they are less resilient to the impact of development within their Root Protection
Zones (RPZs).

Whilst replacement planting can be an option where tree loss is considered
acceptable, a number of concerns have been raised by the Council's
Environmental Planner in relation to the replacement planting proposed in this
instance. It is understood that much of the proposed new planting to the north of
the house would be heavily shaded by the remaining tree stock, likely leading to
low establishment rates and poor quality growth where specimens do manage to
establish themselves. The prevalence of Holly in replacement planting is not
considered to be appropriate, as it would not adequately compensate for the loss
of mature trees of varying species. It is noted also that proposed new planting to
the south of the property would, as trees mature, restrict light levels internally,
thereby leading to increased risk of their removal in future. Furthermore, the
spacing of new trees to be planted to the south of the property would likely lead
to thinning-out as specimens mature.

Taking these factors into account, it is clear that the proposed development
would result in the loss of a substantial number of trees which, though not
including any exceptional individual specimens, collectively make a significant
contribution to local landscape character. The proposals for replacement planting
would not adequately mitigate for the loss of these trees, and it is further noted
that the retention of trees 724 (Wellingtonia, category A) & 725 (Western
Hemlock, category A) in close proximity to the new house would be likely to
increase the threat of their removal in future. It is acknowledged that much of the
tree loss would take place on and around the site of the house itself, with
removals towards the northern end of the site, and its frontage onto North
Deeside Road, less severe, however the extent of tree loss remains
unacceptable, particularly given the limited prospects of good quality replacement
planting. Such extensive tree loss is not consistent with the aims of policy NES

Page 10



(Trees and Woodlands) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, however it is
arguable that the impact on wider landscape character, as perceived from public
areas at North Deeside Road and the Deeside Way, would not be ‘significantly
adversely affected’ as set out in policy D6 (Landscape).

Access/Parking

Notwithstanding consideration of its impact on existing trees, which will be
addressed elsewhere in this report, the proposal includes access being taken via
the existing access point onto North Deeside Road, with a new driveway then
branching off from the existing driveway to Auchenfroe. This arrangement has
been accepted by colleagues in the Council’s Roads Projects Team. Appropriate
provision has been made for the parking of vehicles within the application site, in
accordance with the Council’'s ‘Transport and Accessibility’ supplementary
guidance. The proposal is considered to accord with the requirements of policy
T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) of the ALDP.

Drainage
The comments made by the Council's Flooding team are noted. Further
discussion has established that a detailed scheme of Sustainable Urban
Drainage to serve the site could be provided via condition in the event of
approval.

Low and Zero Carbon Generating Technologies

The proposal makes no reference to the incorporation of Low and Zero Carbon
Generating Technologies within the development. Policy R6 requires
development to make such provision, however details of such arrangements are
commonly obtained via the use of a condition attached to any consent. It is noted
also that ‘deemed compliance’ with the Council’'s adopted supplementary
guidance on Low and Zero Carbon Buildings can be achieved by exceeding C02
reductions required by current building standards, whether that saving is
achieved via LZC generating technologies or ‘fabric first’ solutions.

Matters raised in representations

Support for the proposal is noted. Issues relating to privacy, sunlight, amenity,
impact on trees, and the relationship of the dwelling to its surroundings have
been addressed in the respective sections of this report. The applicant’s
motivations in making a planning application are not relevant to the planning
authority’s consideration. Whilst previous instances of planning permission being
refused are relevant, it is noted that one of these proposals related to a different
site and the other was considered against a different development plan. In all
cases, planning applications will be considered on their own merits, having due
regard for the provisions of the development plan and any other material planning
considerations. Earlier decisions, while relevant, will not preclude due
consideration of a current proposal. Any increase on traffic along North Deeside
Road as a result of a single dwellinghouse would be negligible, and the current
access has been accepted as sufficient to serve an additional house in this
location following due consideration by officers in the Council’'s Roads Projects
Team. Points made regarding preventative works for the care and maintenance
of trees potentially avoiding removal on health grounds are noted, however are

Page 11



not relevant to this assessment, which is based on the condition of the trees and
their value at the present time. It is noted that the burn across the northern part of
the site was not shown on all drawings, however the watercourse was identified
in submissions, and has been taken into account by the Council’s Flooding team.

Summary

Whilst the development proposal is not without merit, and the design and
finishing of the house in isolation is considered to be acceptable, it represents an
uncharacteristically tight fit relative to the neighbouring buildings, and is not
considered to be reflective of the pattern of development in the immediately
surrounding area, which is characterised by detached dwellings, set in large plots
and benefitting from proportionate separation from other buildings. The siting of
the house and the formation of a new driveway would result in an unacceptable
level of tree loss, and proposals for replacement planting would not compensate
adequately for those trees to be removed. Whilst alternative access and driveway
arrangements may reduce the likely impact in terms of trees to be removed, this
would not address the central issue of the siting of a new house relative to its
immediate neighbours and the established character and pattern of development
in the surrounding area. Whilst not in strict compliance with the Council’s
supplementary guidance, any concern arising from the proximity of bedroom
windows in the new house relative to those in Auchenfroe is mitigated by the
angle at which the respective windows are offset. It is therefore concluded that
the proposal fails to demonstrate accordance with the development plan in a
number of areas, detailed in the ‘reasons for recommendation’, below. Matters
raised in representations have been taken into account, and it is concluded that
no matters have been raised that would warrant determination other than in
accordance with the provisions of the development plan.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

1. The proposal is considered to be contrary to the guidance set out in the
Council's adopted 'Sub-division and Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages'
Supplementary Guidance, so far as it relates to the appropriate siting of dwellings
with due regard to any established pattern of development. By virtue of its siting

uncharacteristically close to its own plot boundaries and adjacent dwellings, the
proposal fails to demonstrate due regard for its context or make a positive
contribution to its setting, and is therefore contrary to policy D1 (Architecture and
Placemaking) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and the relevant
paragraph 82 of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP). The proposal would also, as a
result of its failure to demonstrate accordance with the aforementioned
supplementary guidance and its impact on the character of the surrounding area,

Page 12



be contrary to policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the Aberdeen Local Development
Plan.

2. The proposal would result in the removal of a significant number of protected
trees which, though generally not of particular quality individually, collectively
contribute to landscape character and local amenity. The proposal is therefore
considered to be contrary to the aims of policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

Dr Margaret Bochel
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



PI

;o . . 3

From: webmaster@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Sent: 24 February 2014 10:19

To: Pl . -
Subject: Planning Comment for 140148

Comment for Planning Application 140148
Name : Karen Johnston

Address ; 269A North Deeside Road,
Milltimber AB130HD

Telephone :

type: ;
Comment : We are supportive of the proposed development, it appears to be in keeping with the area.

Page 15




PI

From: . webmaster@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Sent: : _ 24 February 2014 12:10

To: Pl

Subject: Planning Comment for 140148

Comment for Planning Application 140148
Name : Alasdair Cowie

Address: 194 North Deeside Road, Milltimber
AB13 OH!

Telephone : [ NGcGcGc—_—_ ,

emoil -

type:

Comment : | fully support this planing application as it make sense for the use of such a large section of land by the
owners and provides further housing in the area without spoiling the setting or purpose of the area.

Page 16



PI

From: webmaster@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Sent: 23 February 2014 17:51
To: , Pl
Subject: Planning Comment for 140148

Comment for Planning Application 140148
Name : James Gilbert ' '
Address : 269, North Deeside Road,
Militimber,

ABERDEEN

AB13 OHD

Telephone : GGG

Comment : We have no objections to this planning application.

1G

Page 17




PI 5 .

L 7 . e e . . - = s
From: webmaster@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Sent: . 20 February 2014 14:03 -

To: P

Subject: : Planning Comment for 140148

Comment for Planning Application 140148
Name : Bobbie Lilley

Address : 214 North Deeside Road,
Milltimber, Aberdeen, AB13 OHIJ

Telephone : [ IENGEGczc0N
Email : [

type:
Comment : I have received a neighbour notification notice and | am supportive of this application.

Page 18




N>

Robert Vickers

m'
From: _ webmaster@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Sent: 05 March 2014 11:29
To: : PI .
© Subject: _ Planning Cornment for 140148

Comment for Planning Application 140148
Name : Hamish Milne

Address : 265 North Deeside Road
Milltimber

Aberdeen

AB13 0HD

Telephone -GN
el (N
type :

Comment : | wish to lodge objection to the appllcatlon on the followmg grounds

1. That the proposed development is not consistent Wlth the nelghbourhood development criteria set by the council
in terms of size, proximity and loss of amenity to adjalnmg properties.

2. Thestyle and size of the proposed house is too big particularly. in context of the w:dth of the proposed feu.

3. The proposed new drive will radically change and result i m Ioss of character and natural habitat of the existing
garden and neighbourhood amenity. J .

4. If development approval is granted a better access solutlon mcludlng updated standards to sightiine access and -
egress and less adverse impact on the existing habitat should be found.

Page 19




PI .
; e
From: ' . webmaster@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Sent: : - 11 March 2014 15:46
To: ' Pl
Subject: ~ Planning Comment for 140148

Comment for Planning Application 140148
Name : Arron Finnie

Address : 12 Devanha Gardens West
Aberdeen '

Telephone : I

Email :

type: - _

Comment : | would like to object to this application. | believe the proposed development is wholly inappropriate for

the area. As someone who regularly visits the neighbouring house at 265a it is clear that the proposal will have a
terrible effect on the privacy, amenity and indeed sunlight currently enjoyed by that property.

.T_he proposed development will borrow a significant amount of amenity from the surrounding properties, with

particular detriment to no. 265a, It seems extremely unreasonable that the owner of No. 267 should benefit

financially, almost entirely at the expense of their neighbours who will be left with direct views of 3 large dwelling

house only a few metres away. Indeed the Iivihg_'accommddati'on at 1st floor level at 265a looks directly onto the

proposed dwelling. : '

The value, but more importantly desirability, of 265a will be effected significantly by this proposal and it just seems

wrong that this could happen in order to benefit one party who will sell the plot for a significant profit if it gets

planning.

Page 20




From: ' webmaster@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Sent: 03 March 2014 21:01

To: ; ! -
Subject: Planning Comment for 140148

Comment for Planning Application 140148
- Name : Angela Harmel
Address: 210 North Deeside Road, Milltimber

Telephone ;IR

email:

type: ) ' i
Comment : We object to the proposed development for the following reasons:

1. The development would increase traffic on North Deeside Road &amp, intensify the number of cars slowing down
and turning off - pulling out onto the road.

. The development would require the removal of several protected trees.
3. Approval of the development would profit the applicant but the resulting house will overshadow the neighbour to
the east, particularly in the afternoon.
4. The kitchen and bedroom windows will overlook the property to the East.

Page 21




PL

From: l_ - webmaster@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Sent: g Y 03 March 2014 20:04

To: PI ;

Subject: Planning Comment for 140148

Comment for Planning Application 140148
Name : Steve Horton

Address : Woodburn House

263C North Deeside Road

Mitltimber

Aberdeen

AB13 OHD

Telephone :—
e S
type:
'Zomment : Objection to Proposed Development at 267 North Deeside Road, Milltimber Planning Application 140148

| have reviewed the documents associated with the proposed development and wish to formally notify Aberdeen
City Council Planning Team that | object to it for the following reasons.

The proposed property is adjacent to the Deeside Railway Line. The railway line, described as the disused Deeside
Railway line, is not disused; on the contrary, it is used now more than it ever was, now by walkers and cyclists,
primarily recreational, people enjoying the open countryside. This development will effect their enjoyment of the
environment for those walkers and cyclists, both during construction, and afterwards. ‘

The entire site is covered by a tree preservation order. There are more than 100 protected trees on and around the
site, including some prime mature specimen firs Noble and Douglas varieties, several of which it is proposed would
be sacrificed for this development. The plans suggest that they will chop down more than thirty trees, of which |
think eleven are assessed as being diseased or dead. | am amazed that the arboricultural planner would be of the
opinion that the rules would allow such destruction for a planning application for a very large single dwelling new
development. o

.m disappointed to read that several of the trees in the curtilage are assessed as dead or dying, and wonder why
these trees have not been properly maintained in the past. As homeowners, we all have the responsibility to look
after trees on our land for the enjoyment of everyone who uses the local environment. | note the interesting
language used to describe the way to mitigate the risk of future removal of trees that would shade the proposed
new property though | do not understand it; | have to ask if the strategy is therefore &#8220;chop them down
now&#8221;1 . ‘ '

| note that the location plan in the design statement does not show the large burn that runs across the north of the
curtilage, and in fact forms the northern boundary of my property. it is however shown in one of the other layout
drawings, and the proposed development seems to presume that the burn need not be moved or piped, though it
does regularly burst its banks and it floods; | am not sure if or how it would affect the proposed development, but
on our land flooding has occurred three or more times this winter.

In my view, the house does not fit within the plot in an aesthetically pleasing way. It is jammed in between two
already substantial houses, very 'severely affecting the house immediately to the east. The granite/harling
combination will not fit well with the general area, and is quite different from the houses on either side. Despite
what is written in the design statement, the house will be visible and prominent from the railway line and in
particular from the South Deeside Road as well as Milltimber Brae and the bridge over the River Dee. In my view, the

Page 22




new house and the loss of the trees will seraously detract from the speCIaI character of Mllltlmber seen by tourists,
travellers and local people using these facilities.

The house is as | have said jammed into a relatively small space between two substantial houses. We have already
had to deal with several applications on the land belonging to 267 North Deeside Road, we had hoped to new
owners would have bought their property to enjoy its special character and location. This is perhaps the &quot;least
worst&quot; proposal | have reviewed in the last fifteen years, but | do not understand why anything which would
spoil this special place has to be built here at all. Unfortunately for the owners of 2654, if this proposed house is
built, it will destroy their enjoyment of their property &#8211; access to light, removal of trees, light pollution,
privacy, views over the river valley, overlooking windows, passibly noise and very significant loss of amenity.

| note the suggestion that this property due to its nature and scale will provide something not provided elsewhere in
-the local development plan. it will indeed &#8211; it provides another very large new house In the garden of a major
house that is a local landmark, which requires several magnificent trees to be destroyed, severely impacting the
amenity of its near ne:ghbour

Page 23



CED
Bri'dgestone House
263B North Deeside Road
Militimber
Aberdeen

AB13 OHD
4 February 2014

Dear Sirs

Planning Application 140148 - Objection to Proposed Development at 267 North Deeside Road,
Milltimber, Aberdeen. o T oE ‘

e,
o8

I would like to raise an objei:tion to the above planning application for the following reasons.

The application makes reference to the removal of a signiﬁcant number of trees. The entire site is
covered by a tree preservation order. | am surprised that a,s:ir_\gle house planning application would
 merit or allow the removal of so many trees particularly those of the mature Douglas and Noble
Furs. Any removal of trees WOuld go against the purpose of having a tree preservation order. |
would also mention that planning permission has already been refused for development in this area
on the grounds of the impact of the removal of trees.

Further the view of the site and area from the South Deeside Road, Milltimber Brae and very
possibly the old Deeside railway line will be changed as a result of the loss of this nlmber of trees
- coupled with the erection of a new building.

I am of the view that the proposed house does not fit within the plot in an aesthetically pleasing
manner, as it will be situated in between two already substantial houses, significantly affecting the
house to the east and totally out of character with this area of Milltimber. This area of the city has
been enjoyed by the local residents and the building of a new property in such a confined space
would be detrimental to the ambience and enjoyment of the neighbourhood as a whole.

For these reason | feel that this application should be refused.
Yours fa ithfully

David Henderson

Page 24




GE

Mr & Mrs D. Walker
265a North Deeside Road
Militimber
AB13 0HD

Head of Planning & Sustainable Development 3 March 2014

Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure

Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Marischal College

Broad Street

Aberdeen

AB10 1AB

Dear Sirs,

Planning Application ref: 140148 for a Proposed Dwellinghouse within the Curtilage of
Auchenfroe, 267 North Deeside Road, Milltimber

We strongly object to the above application to develop an additional dwellinghouse on a speculative
basis within thé curtilage of no. 267 North Deeside Road. The proposal shows a complete disregard
for the amenity of our home, compromising our privacy, amenity and daylight through the proposal of
a two-storey 5-6 bedroomed-dwellinghouse 7m to the south-west of our house — a density which is
uncharacteristic for the area. This is in addition to the loss of 19 protected trees, of which 18 ‘appear
sound and heaithy'. The proposal is at odds with policies D1, D2, NE5 and H1 of the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan (2012), in addition to its supplementary guidance The Subdivision and
‘Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages; compliance with which is a criterion for compliance with
~ policy H1.

There have been several proposals for dwellinghouses on land within the curtilage of no. 267 North
Deeside Road, all of which have been refused for the above reasons and subsequently dismissed at
appeal, or have been withdrawn following advice to this effect; each one has considered development
in this location o be overdevelopment which is uncharacteristic and damaging to the amenity of the
neighbouring properties.

‘Application P120033: Erection of a dwellinghouse and garage at 265a/267 North Deeside Road
The two reasons for refusal of this application were:

1. The proposed development, by way of its inappropriate siting and relationship with its
surroundings, fails to demonsirate due regard for its context and the general settlement pattern

Page 25



of the surrounding area. It is considered that the proposal would be contrary to paragraph 82 of

SPP, policies D1 (architecture and placemaking), and H1 (residential areas) of the Aberdeen

Lacal Development Plan, and the City Council's supplementary planning guidance on the 'Sub-
- division and Re-development of Residential Curtilages’.

" 2. The praposed development, if approved, would risk further eroding the character of this area and
sefting an undesirable precedent for speculative development in areas characterised by
detached dwellings located within large plots, leading to a cumulative erosion of character and
amenity.

Application A6/1699: Erection of new dwellinghouse at 267 North Deeside Road. Milltimber

This application was an outline proposal which included a site plan for determination. The application
was in an almost identical location to the proposal under consideration. Whilst considered under the
policies of the Aberdeen Local Plan 1991 and Finalised Aberdeen Local Plan 2004, the principles
behind the reason for refusal and subsequent dismissal of the appeal remain the same.

The reasons for refusal were, that thé prdposal, if implemented:

1. would. be contrary to Policy R3 - Residential (Lower Deeside) of the adopted Aberdeen City
District-Wide Local Plan (1891) and supplementary planning guidelines — Splitting of Residential
Feus (1990) due to its detrimental impact on protected trees and residential amenity by way of
over-development. '

2. would be contrary to Policy 31 — Protecting Trees and Woodlands and Policy 36 — Residential
Areas of the Finalised Aberdeen Local Plan (2004) due to the de{rimental impact upon existing
residential character and amenity and the loss of established trees that make a contribution to
their setting.

3. would result in the loss of mature trees covered by Tree Preservation Order 57 to the detriment
of the surrounding landscape and the residéntial character of the area.

The committee report determines the following in its evaluation of the proposal:

The proposal would detract from this established pattern by substantially reducing the setting of the
existing house not only by its proximity (6 metres) but also by the loss of mature trees that are

covered by a free preservation order. Furthermore, the presence of a new property on this site would
be within 12 metres of an existing dwelling to the east that is separated by no more than a small
hedge. The implications of such siting could, subject to final design, be that the privacy of existing
residents is compromised.

Relationship of new house to the existing dwelling and those immediately adjacent It is generally
accepted that a separation distance of 18_ metres between the windows of habitable rooms of

separate properties is acceptable. Should this proposal be approved, there would be a separation

Page 26 |



distance of 5 meires with Auchenfroe and 12 metres with 265a North Deeside Road, therefore there
is a possibility that such separation cannot be achieved but this cannot be determined at this stage.

Furthermore, 265a is orientated to be south-west facing, which is directly in line with the proposed
dwelling. By replacing existing trees with_a_permanent building there is potential for there to be a

detrimental impact upon 265a in the way of invasion of privacy and a loss of daylight exposure.

Density

The building form in Lower Deeside is_generally detached properties contained within generous

garden ground, although this form has not been followed strictly in the sites immediately adjacent to

Auchenfroe. The proposal would benefit from sizeable garden ground to the front and rear but would -

be quite narrow, a situation that would be replicated for Auchenfroe. Therefore, the setting of the
existing dwelling is somewhat compromised.

Precedent -7

Due to the generous nature of building plots _in the L ower Deeside area, approval of this proposal

could set an undesirable precedent and have consequences for the character of the Deeside villages

and traffic generation. In addition, the potential precedent set for the loss of protected trees should be
avoided in the interest of residential amenity and the character setting that Aberdeen enjoys from tree
provision. ‘

Application A5/1630: erection of dwellinghouse within garden area and new vehicular access
to existing dwellinghouse at Auchenfroe (Site A) 267 NDR

This application was for a single dwellinghouse in a similar position to the one currently applied for;
following advice from the planning department the application was withdrawn prior to determination in
September 2009.

)

Aberdeen City Council Policy

The development proposal does not comply with Aberdeen Local Devefopment Plan polices:
Policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking ensures high standards of design, new development
must be designed with due consideration for its context, and should make a positive contribution to its

setting. Factors such as siting, scale. massing, materials, orientation, details, the proportions of
building elements, landscaping and boundary treatments, will be considered in assessing that
contribution.

Page 27



The committee report for planning application ref: P120033 notes that this_policy applies_not only to
the external appearance of a development, but also to its siting in relation to existing buildings and the

relationship between buildings and their surrounding spaces.

Policy D2: Design and Amenity outlines criteria for ensuring new residential development maintains :
and provides quality amenity for existing and future residents. These criteria include designing
privacy into higher density housing and access to gardens and other amenity areas.

Policy NES: Trees and Woodlands presumes against all activities and development that will result in
the loss of, or damage to, established trees and woodlands that contribute significantly to nature
conservation, 1andscépe -character or local amenity, including ancient and semi-natural woodland
which is irreplaceable. ' '

Under policy H1: Residential Areas, a proposal(s) for new residential development within existing
residential areas are acceptable where it does not constitute over-development: does not have an
unacceptable impact _on_the character or amenity of the surrounding area; complies with

supplementary guidance on curtilage splits.

The Council's Supplementary Guidance on the Sub-division of Residential Curtilages notes that:

« _New residential development should not borrow amenity from, or prejudice the development

of _adjacent land or adversely affect existing development in terms of privacy, overlooking,
daylighting or-sunlighting (para. 3.4.1).

« The relationship of new residential development to existing dwellings is an important féctor to
be considered in assessing whether the privacy, amenity, sunlight and daylight of residents of |
both existing and proposed dwellings would be adversely affected (para. 3.4.2).

+« Jo ensure privacy, as a general guideline, there should be a minimum separation of 18
metres between the windows of existing and proposed habitable rooms. This distance can be
reduced if the angle between the windows of the existing and proposed residential properties
is offset, if effective screening exists this can be reduced as specified (para. 3.4.3 ).

« Any windows to habitable rooms should not look out directly over, or down into, areas used as

private amenity space by residents of adjoining dw_eElinqs (para. 3.6.4)

+ The width of a curtilage may allow for a dwelling to be built alongside an existing dwelling.

The distance between proposed dwellings, and between proposed and existing dwellings
should be similar to that predominating on the street (para. 3.6.4).

Discussion

The above supplementary guidance considers the aspects of amenity discussed in policy VD‘l and
policy H1. Contrary to policy, the proposed house borrows a significant amount of amienity from

Page 28



neighbouring properties both in terms of compromising privacy, loss of afternoon and evening
sunlight and loss of amenity through the unduly close proximity of the property, which does not
respect the character and amenity of the area which is acknowledged as characterised by large
villas situated in substantial plots,

Na. 2653 is orientated south-west, with its communal living room and bedraoms on the first floor.
The Design Statement mentions that there is a boundary hedge, however this is not of sufficient
.h_eight to prevent overlooking into the living space within the property and into the garden from the
first floor of the proposed property. Conversely, being on the first floor, the living room of 265a
would directly overlook the garden, kitchen and bedrooms for the proposed property. The angle
between the proposed house at 267 and 265a is 54°, the prescribed minimum 8m distance
between windows at this angle is not met; furthermore the minimum distance required between
267 and the proposed dwellinghouse is 18m, with is not met.

As the living room is on the first floor, the afternoon and evening sunlight fight into this well-used
room is currently unimpeded and would be adversely affected by the proposed property.

In addition to its non-compliance with the minimum distance in respect of privacy, the proposed
dwellinghousé does not comply with the density of surrounding development. Whilst it is on the
same building line and the plot is a regular shape, the proposal is 6m to the east of no. 267 and
7m to the west of no. 265a. As a comparison, the distance between the distance between nos.
265a arid 267 is 30m; between nos. 267 and 269 is 13m; and the distance between nos. 271 and
269 is 17m — all of which are double or triple the distances between neighbouring properties.

As regards the previous applications for the development of a dwellinghouse within the curtilage
of 267, the proposed loss of 19 trees, 18 of which are reported as appearing sound and healthy,
is nearly double that of A6/1699 in the same location, for which the loss of mature trees was a
reason for refusal.

- Whilst the position of the dwellinghouse applied for in the current application is in line with the
traditional villa at no. 267 and has a north-south-orientated plot, the proposed house is a 2-storey
5/6 bedroomed house and continues to demonstrate a clear lack of regard for its surroundings.
The previous concerns in relation to overdevelopment, size and position of the house in relation to
neighbouring prwacy and amenity are highly relevant issues.

Whilst A6/1699 was considered under the previous local plan, its reasons for refusal remain valid,
particularly as the location of the proposed dwellinghouse is the same and the tree loss, proximity,
sunlight and overlooking issues are greater. Whilst located further south, the reasons for refusal
of P120033 are also applicable. The second reason in particutar is applicable in its entirety, given
that this is a speculative development proposal and does not accord with the character of the
area, being “detached dwellings located within large plots”, particularly due to the density, which
results in the new proposal being ‘shoehorned’ into the site.

Page 29



The proposal will adversely affect the distinctive character of the local area through
uncharacteristic overdevelopment of the plot. The proposed house would be within 6m of no. 267
and within 7m of no. 265a — out of character with the building pattern in the area. No. 265a was
built in the grounds of no. 265 over a decade ago, in the land between nos. 265 and 267. This
proposal for further development in the gap between 2653 and 267 will result in overdevelopment
of the site.

The proposed dwellinghouse adversely affects neighbouring amenity through direct overiooking
from the kitchen and bedroom windows on the east elevation, particu!ariy as the main living room
for no. 265a is on the first floor. With such a small distance between the properties, no. 265a will
overlook the accommeodation and private gardens related to the proposed house. The house is a
substantial two-storey, 5-6 bedroomed property and will affect sunlight into the house and garden
at no 2652 in the afternoon and evening. The minimum distances to adjacent property set out in
supplementary guidance are not met and the proposed dwellinghouse is a substantial size and
_ . would require the removal of 19 protected trees, 18 of which are recorded in the tree survey as
appearing sound and healthy.

- On the basis of the foregoing we object to planning application ref: 140148 for a proposed
dwellinghouse within the curtilage. of Auchenfroe, 267 North Deeside Road, Militimber; and
respectfully request that the application for planning permission is refused.

Yours Sincerely,
B

Mr & Mrs D. Walker

. Cc.  Clir. M. Boulton
Clir. A. Malone
Clir. M.T. Malik

Page 30




S et o i B L e

-_—
From: webmaster@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Sent: ' 07 March 2014 13:54

To: . Pl

Subject: Planning Comment for 140148

Comment for Planning Application 140148
Name : Dean Walker ;
Address : 265a North Deeside Road
Milltimber

Telephone : N
Email - [
type :

Comment : Dear Sirs,

Planning Application ref: 140148 for a Proposed Dwellinghouse within the Curtilage of Auchenfroe, 267 North Deeside
Road, Milltimber

We strongly object to the above application to develop an additional dwellinghouse on a speculative basis within the
curtilage of no. 267 North Deeside Road. The proposal shows a complete disregard for the amenity of our home,

_compromising our privacy, amenity and daylight through the proposal of a two-storey 5-6 bedroomed~_dwetlinghouse
7m to the south-west of our house &#8211; a density which is uncharacteristic for the area. This is'in addition to the
loss of 19 protected trees, of which 18 &#8216;appear sound and healthy&#8217;. The proposal is at odds with policies
D1, D2, NESand H1 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2012}, in addition to its supplementary guidance The
Subdivision and Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages; compliance with which is a criterion for compliance with
policy H1. ' :

There have been several proposals for dwellinghouses on land within the curtilage of no. 267 North Deeside Road, all of
which have been refused for the above reasons and subsequently dismissed at appeal, or have been withdrawn
following advice to this effect; each one has considered development in this Jocation to be overdevelopment which is
uncharacteristic and damaging to the amenity of the neighbouring properties. :

Application P120033: Erection of a dwellinghouse and garage at 265a/267 North Deeside Road

The two reasons for refusal of this application were: -

1. The proposed development, by way of its inappropriate siting and relationship with its surroundings, fails to
demonstrate due regard for its context and the general settlement pattern of the surrounding area. It is considered that
the proposal would be contrary to paragraph 82 of SPP, policies D1 (architecture and placemaking), and H1 (residential
areas) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, and the City Council's supplementary planning guidance on the 'Sub-
division and Re-development of Residential Curtilages'.

2, The proposed development, if approved, would risk further eroding the character of this area and setting an
undesirable precedent for speculative development in areas characterised by detached dwellings located within large
plots, leading to a cumulative erosion of character and amenity.

Application A6/1699: Erection of new dwellinghouse at 267 North Deeside Road, Milltimber This application was an
outline proposal which included a site plan for determination. The application was in an almost identical location to the
proposal under consideration. Whilst considered under the policies of the Aberdeen Local Pian 1991 and Finalised

1

Page 31




Aberdeen Local Plan 2004 the prmcup!es behind the reason for refusal and subsequent dismissal of the appea! remam
the same. _ o g

‘The reasons for refusal were, that the proposal, if implemented:

1. would be contrary to Policy R3 - Residential {Lower Deeside) of the adopted Aberdeen City District-Wide Local

_ Plan (1991) and supplementary planning guidelines &#8211; Splitting of Residential Feus (1990) due to its detrimental

impact on protected trees and residential amenity by way of over- -development.
2. . would be contrary to Policy 31 &#8211; Protecting Trees and Woodlands and Policy 36 &#8211; Remdentnal

" Areas of the Finalised Aberdeen Local Plan (2004) due to the detrimental impact upon existing residential character and

amenity and the loss of established trees that make a contribution to their setting.

3 would result in the loss of mature trees covered by Tree Preservation Order 57 to the detriment of the
surrounding landscape and the residential character of the area.

The committee report determines the following in its evaluation of the proposal:

The proposal would detract from this established pattern by substantially reducing the setting of the existing house not
only by its proximity (6 metres) but also by the loss of mature trees that are covered by a tree preservation order.
Furthermore, the presence of a new property on ‘this site would be within 12 metres of an existing dwelfing to the east
that is separated by no more than a small hedge. The implications of such siting could, subject to final design, be that
the privacy of existing residents is compromised.

Relationship of new house to the existing dwelling and those immediately adjacent it is generally accepted thata
separation distance of 18 metres between the windows of habitable rooms of separate properties is acceptable. Should
this proposal be approved, there would be a separation distance of 5 metres with Auchenfroe and 12 metres with 26523

‘North Deeside Road, therefore there is a possibility that such separation cannot be achieved but this cannot be

determined at this stage. Furthermore, 265a is orientated to be south-west facing, which is directly in line with the
proposed dwelling. By replacmg existing trees with a permanent building there is potential for there to be a detrimental
impact upon 265a in the way of invasion of privacy and a loss of daylight exposure. ;

Density :

The building form in Lower Deeside is generally detached propertiés contained within generous garden ground,
although this form has not been followed strictly in the sites immediately adjacent to Auchenfroe. The proposal would
benefit from sizeable garden ground to the front and rear but would be quite narrow, a situation that would be
replicated for Auchenfroe. Therefore, the setting of the existing dwelling is somewhat compromised.

Precedent ' ' '

Due to the generous nature of building plots in the Lower Deeside area, approval of this proposal could set an

“undesirable precedent and have consequences for the character of the Deeside villages and traffic generation. In

addition, the potential precedent set for the loss of protected trees should be avoided in the interest of residential
amenity and the character setting that Aberdeen enjoys from tree provmon

Application A5/1630: erection of dwellinghouse wuthm garden area and new vehlcular access to existing dwellmghouse
at Auchenfroe (Site A) 267 NDR This application was for a single dwellinghouse in a similar position to the one currently
applied for; following advice from the planning department the application was withdrawn prior to determination in
September 2009. '

'+ Aberdeen City Council Policy .

The development proposal does not comply with Aberdeen Local Development Plan polices:

Policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking ensures high standards of design, new development must be designed with
due consideration for its context, and should make a positive contribution to its setting. Factors such as siting, scale, |
massing, materials, orientation, details, the proportions of building elements, landscaping and boundary treatments,
will be considered in assessing that contribution.

The committee report for planning application ref: P120033 notes that this policy applies not only to the external
appearance of a development, but also to its siting in relat:on to existing buildings and the relationship between
buildings and their surrounding spaces. P340 Letters of. Rearesantation

Roptczion Nt 4 A_(Y | ZPB'

2 . IEcEVED 68 MAR‘ 2014

Ner [ Sou " 2  MAg
Case Gfissr infiz's: c

Date Ackeowledged: lé}- 163 .“4-
Page 32




P 4 ad

Poiicy D2: Design and Amenity outlines criteria for ensuring new residential development maintains and provides quality
amenity for existing and future residents. These criteria include designing privacy into higher density housing and
access to gardens and other amenity areas. : ' '

Policy NE5: Trees and Woodlands presumes against all activities and development that will result in the loss of, or
damage to,established trees and woodlands that contribute significantly to nature conservation, landscape character or
local amenity, including ancient and semi-natural woodland which is irreplaceable. :

Under policy H1: Residential Areas, a proposal(s) for new residential development within existing residential areas are
_acceptable where it: does not constitute over-development; does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or
amenity of the surrounding area; complies with supplementary guidance on curtilage splits. :

The Council's Supplementary Guidance on the Sub-division of Residential Curtilages notes that: :
&ii8226; New residential development should not borrow amenity from, or prejudice the development of,
adjacent land or adversely affect existing development in terms-of privacy, overlooking, dayligh'tingwor éun!ighting (para.
34.1). . , S o T
&#8226; The relationship of new residential development to existing dwellings is an important factor to be
considered in assessing whether the privacy, amenity, sunlight and daylight of residents of both existing and proposed

“dwellings would be adversely affected (para.3.4.2).. - _
&#8226; To ensure privacy, as a general guideline, there should be a minimum separation of 18 metres between
the windows of existing and proposed habitable rooms. This distance can be reduced if the angle between the windows
of the existing and proposed residential properties is offset, if effective screening exists this can be reduced as specified
(para.3.43). - - ' '

&1#8226; Any windows to habitable rooms should not look out directly over, or down into;- areas used as private
amenity space by residents of adjoining dwellings (para. 3.64). '
&#8226; * The width of a curtilage may allow for a dwelling to be built alongside an existing dwelling. The distance

between proposed dwellings, and between proposed and existing dwellings should be similar to that predominating on
the street (para. 3.6.4). ' ‘ :

Discussion : :
The above supplementary guidance considers the aspects of amenity discussed in policy D1 and policy H1. Contrary to
“policy, the proposed house borrows a significant amount of amenity from neighbouring properties both in terms of
compromising privacy, loss of afternoon and evening sunlight and loss of amenity through the unduly close broximity of
the property, which does not respect the character and amenity of the area which is acknowledged as characterised by
large villas situated in substantial plots. ‘ : ' ;
No. 265a is orientated south-west, with its communal living room arid bedrooms on the first floor. The Design
Statement mentions that there is a boundary hedge, however this is not of sufficient height to prevent overlooking into
the living space within the property and into the garden from the first floor of the proposed property. Conversely, being
on the first floor, the living room of 265a would directly overlook the garden, kitchen and bedrooms for the proposed
‘property. The angle between the proposed house at 267 and 265a is 540, the prescribed minimum 8m distance ,
between windows at this angle is not met; furthermore the minimum distance required between 267 and the proposed
dwellinghouse is 18m, with is not met. . g kL : -
As the living room is on the first floor, the afternoon and evening sunlight light into this well-used room is currently
unimpeded and would be adversely affected by the praposed property. A
In addition to its non-compliance with the minimum distance in respect of privacy, the proposed dwellinghouse does
not comply with the density of surrounding development. Whilst it is on the same building line and the plotis a regular
shape, the proposal is 6m to the east of no. 267 and 7m to the west of no. 265a. As a comparison, the distance
between the distance between nos. 265a and 267 is 30m; between nos. 267 and 269 is 13m; and the distance between
nos. 271 and 269 is 17m &#8211; all of which are double or triple the distances between neighbouring properties.
As regards the previous applications for the development of a dwellinghouse within the curtilage of 267, the proposed
loss of 19 trees, 18 of which are repofted_as appearing sound and healthy, is nearly double that of A6/169% in the same

location, for which the loss of mature trees was a reason for refusal..

3

Page 33




Whilst the position of the dwellinghouse applied for in the current application is in line with the traditional vilia at no.
267 and has a north-south-orientated plot, the proposed house is a 2-storey 5/6 bedroomed house and cont'mue's to
demonstrate a clear lack of regard for its surroundings. The previous concerns in relation to overdevelopment size and
~ position of the house in relation to neighbouring privacy and amenity are highly relevant issues.

Whilst A6/1699 was considered under the previous local plan, its reasons for refusal remain valid; particularly as the
location of the proposed dwellinghouse is the same and the tree loss, proximity, sunlight and overlooking issues are
greater. Whilst located further south, the reasons for refusal of P120033 are also applicable. The second reason in
particular is applicable in its entirety, given that this is a speculative development proposal and does not accord with the
character of the area, being &#8220;detached dwellings located within large plots&#8221;, particularly due to the
density, which results in the new proposal being &#8216;shoehorned&#8217; into the site. ;

The proposal will adversely affect the distinctive character of the local area through uncharacteristic overdevelopment
of the plot. The proposed house would be within 6m of no. 267 and within 7m of no. 265a &#8211; out of character
with the building pattern in the area. No. 265a was built in the grounds of no..265 over a decade ago, in the land
between nos. 265 and 267. This proposal for further development in the gap between 265a and 267 will result in
overdevelopment of the site.

~ The proposed dwenmghouse adversety affects neighbouring amenity through direct over!ooklng from the kitchen and
bedroom windows on the east elevation, particularly as the main living room for no. 265a is on the first floor. With such
a small distance between the properties, no. 265a will overlook the accommodation and private gardens related to the
proposed house. The house is a substantial two-storey, 5-6 bedroomed property and will affect sunlight into the house
and garden at no 265a in the afternoon and evening. The minimum distances to adjacent property set out in
supplementary guidance are not met and the proposed dwellinghouse is a substantial size and would require the
removal of 19 protected trees, 18 of which are recorded in the tree survey as appearing sound and healthy.

On the basis of the foregoing we object to planning application ref: 140148 for a proposed dwellinghouse within the
‘curtitage of Auchenfroe, 267 North Deesvde Road, Militimber; and respectfully request that the application for planning
permission is refused. :

Yours Sincerely,

Mr &amp; Mrs D. Walker

RECENVED 1 il MAR 2014

Nor [Sou - | MAp

Tase Offcernitials: <L
DateAamnwladged = 3—/ \A

Page 34



Agenda Item 2

Planning Development Management Committee

FAIRLEY ROAD (LAND TO EAST OF),
KINGSWELLS

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF 7
DETACHED UNITS, 28 SEMI-DETACHED
UNITS AND 11 TERRACE HOUSES WITH
ASSOCIATED ACCESS ROADS, DRAINAGE
AND SUDS STORAGE

For: Dandara Group

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission ~ Advert : Can't notify neighbour(s)
Application Ref. : P130288 Advertised on: 17/04/2013

Application Date: 05/04/2013 Committee Date: 24/04/2014

Officer: Tommy Hart Community Council : comments received

Ward : Kingswells/Sheddocksley/Summerhill (L
Ironside/S Delaney/D Cameron)

LY
a,ﬁLT 7
@\% I— =‘=-=I-=».=.==R
D ﬂé, ) - Estone
= e B erstgne
T L
. Inggwood rack
Flaykig Fiel
s
: k Tals) e Ho
iy \_,-: T =l
Op=f 1
Arrmidee
L Pl
RECOMMENDATION:

Willingness to approve, subject to conditions, but to withhold the issue of
the consent document until the applicant has entered into a legal
agreement with the Council to secure;

1. On-site affordable housing provision;

2. Strategic Transport Fund contributions;
3. Developer contributions towards:

Page 35



- affordable housing;

- education facilities;

- community facilities and recreation;

- healthcare; and

4. Provision of a footpath along the western boundary of the
application site on Fairley Road.

DESCRIPTION

The application site forms the western side of the West Husterstone Masterplan
Area (OP42) which covers a total of around 6 hectares. The site itself extends to
some 1.6ha and lies on the edge of the village of Kingswells, around 4 miles to
the west of Aberdeen City Centre. The site comprises undeveloped agricultural
land and slopes down from north to south. To the north is a 20-30 year old
drydash finished bungalow ‘Morven’ fronting onto the Langstracht and a more
traditional steading and farmhouse facing onto Fairley Road. Generally the
boundary enclosures for these properties consists of hedging and low-level stone
dyke walling. The land to the east of the site is currently undeveloped agricultural
land and to the south lies the Den Burn. On the opposite side of Fairley Road,
there are a number of 1960’s style 2-storey semi-detached properties with a
white harl and brick finish to the walls. The front boundary treatment for those
properties is generally a 1m high wall and low-level hedges.

RELEVANT HISTORY

Site specific

Planning ref 120296 (Proposal of Application Notice) was submitted for
consideration in February 2012. No further consultation was required.

Planning ref 130404 for the erection of a temporary sales cabin was approved
conditionally by the Planning Development Management Committee in
September 2013.

Planning ref 130405 for the erection of 3 non-illuminated hoardings and 2
flagpoles was approved conditionally under delegated powers in September
2013.

Site to the east

Planning ref 130912 for the erection of 97 dwellings, access roads, landscaping,
drainage and SUDS was approved subject to satisfactory completion of a s75
Legal Agreement at the Planning Development Management Committee in
January 2014.

PROPOSAL
Detailed planning permission is sought for the erection of 46 residential dwellings
with associated access roads, drainage and SUDS.

Layout of the Development

The site is generally laid out in three rows of houses on a north-south axis. The
properties to the west would face onto Fairley Road with the two other rows
facing an internal access road. At the north-end of the site, there would be a
group of thirteen properties surrounding a formal parking area. To the south of

Page 36



the site, an area of formal amenity space is shown along the Den Burn and would
include SUDS tanks.

Proposed houses

Two-storey houses are proposed, namely: 2 detached four-bed properties; 5
detached three-bed; 25 semi-detached three bed; and 5 three-bed terraced
properties.

The external finishes vary between two character areas - the nine properties
facing onto Fairley Road being within the ‘Fairley Road’ character area and the
remainder of the properties being within the ‘central’ character area. Finishes are
generally in the order of white drydash render, dark grey roof tiles and white
timber effect windows. Some properties would have timber front and garage
doors, whilst others may have a more contemporary design approach. Accents of
timber cladding are used sporadically throughout the site. The final details of the
external finishes will be dealt with through a planning condition.

The houses on plots 9, 10 and 46 have a high-level window on the gable-ends
which face onto the public road, thus breaking up and providing more interest to
these prominent elevations.

Affordable Housing

Nine affordable units are proposed within the northern cul-de-sac. These would
be 2-storey 2-bed mid-terraced properties finished externally to match the other
properties within the ‘central’ character area.

Access

The main access point is from Fairley Road which is then to link with the adjacent
site to the east. Pedestrian access is also proposed from Fairley Road and again
links to the east.

Open Space
Some 0.288ha (2880sgm) of open space is proposed at the south end of the site
beyond the access road.

Drainage
A SUDS tank is shown within the open space area to the south of the access

road.

Proposed site boundary treatment

Existing drystone dykes will either be retained or rebuilt along the Fairley Road
and eastern boundaries. A feature drystone dyke is proposed at the access to the
site off Fairley Road. Hedging and 1.8m high fencing are proposed in other areas
throughout the site.

Supporting Documents

All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this
application can be viewed on the Council's website at -
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?130288

Page 37



On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first
page of this report.

Design Statement

Landscape Appraisal and Planting Schedule

Drainage Assessment for Kingswells

Ecolgical Appraisal (Northern Ecological Services, May 2012)

West Huxterstone Transport Assessment (Fairhurst, October 2012).

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE

The application has been referred to the the Planning Development Management
Committee because Kingswells Community Council have objected to the
application. Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s
Scheme of Delegation.

CONSULTATIONS

Roads Projects Team - The proposed parking is considered acceptable, as is
the access to the site and driveways onto Fairley Road. A residential travel plan
is required. The internal layout of the site is acceptable in terms of vehicular
movement. Information is still required in relation to surface water treatment for
the access road but this could be conditioned. In relation to the Strategic
Transport Fund, the applicant has been made aware that a contribution is
required.

Environmental Health — no comments received

Developer Contributions Team - a developer contributions package is required
to mitigate the impact of the development, relating to: securing on-site affordable
housing and contributions towards affordable housing; education facilities;
community facilities; playing fields; library; and healthcare facilities.

Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) - there were potential
flooding issues associated with the proposal but following the removal of the
houses on the southern side of the access road, there are no objections
forthcoming. A condition is requested requiring a Drainage Impact Assessment to
be submitted for approval prior to work commencing on site. Discussions are on-
going in relation to mitigation of potential on-site flooding issues.

Education, Culture & Sport (Archaeology) - requests a condition be attached
requesting the submission of a programme of archaeological work to be
approved in advance of work taking place on site

Scottish Environment Protection Agency — no objection subject to a condition
being applied requiring the submission of details of SUDS and a construction
environmental management plan both to be submitted and approved before
development can commence.

Community Council — Kingswells Community Council object to the application.
The reasons for objection can be summarised as;

Page 38



1. The application fails to take account of the instructions of the Enterprise,

Planning and Infrastructure Committee of 6™ November with regards to: a)

allowing for the possibility of two exits onto Fairley Road; b) instruct

officers to look at a range of options for affordable housing rather than

restrict to one type; c) phase the site development in conjunction with

advice from the Education, Culture and Sport Service;

There is no acknowledgment of phasing in this application;

The primary school can only accommodate more pupils if house building

at West Huxterstone is delayed until 2016 — developer contributions will

not solve this issue;

4. The application fails to comply with the Masterplan guiding principles
regarding open spaces;

5. The application fails to comply with the Masterplan with respect to lack of
‘gateway’ opportunity;

6. The application fails to comply with the Masterplan with respect to lack of
homezones.

w N

Transport Scotland — no objections

Police Scotland - in general, the site layout offers high levels of natural
surveilance. However, the rear of properties can be vunrable to theft, particularly
where there is unobserved access and this should be taken into account.

Aberdeen International Airport - the proposed development does not conflict
with safeguarding criteria, subject to condition relating to: measures to limit bird
strike risk to Aberdeen Airport and submission of SUDS scheme. A requirement
controlling the use of cranes can be included as an informative as can the
requirement to ensure that the fabric design of dwellings is such that noise
impact, from aircraft, on residential amenity levels is mitigated but bearing in
mind that the site lies outwith the noise contours which would cause disturbance.

REPRESENTATIONS
Two letters of objection have been received. The objections raised relate to the
following matters —
1. A cul-de-sac is shown adjacent to the Stewart Milne application site where
there should be a through-road;
2. No flood risk assessment has been submitted but it would appear that
some houses would fall within the flood area and could not be constructed;
3. There are drainage issues at the south west corner of the site which will
be made worse by the proposed development.

PLANNING POLICY
National Policy and Guidance

Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) is a statement of Scottish Government policy on
land use planning. Of particular interest is the general policy relating to
Sustainable Development, as well as the subject planning policies relating to
Housing; Affordable Housing; Location; and Design of New Development.

Page 39



Designing Places is the statement that sets out the Government’s expectations
that the planning system delivers high standards of design in development
projects.

Designing Streets (A Policy Statement for Scotland) promotes pedestrian friendly
design in developments.

Strategic Policy

Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan sets out vision for the local area and sets
objectives in relation to; Economic growth; Population growth; Quality of the
environment; Creation of sustainable mixed communities; and Accessibility.

Aberdeen Local Development Plan

Policy LR1- Land Release Policy Part A

Phase 1 release development: Housing 2007 — 2016; development on sites
allocated in Phase one will be approved in principle.

Policy 11 - Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions

Where development, either individually or cumulatively, will place additional
demands on community facilities or infrastructure necessitating new facilities or
exacerbate deficiencies in existing provision, the Council will require the
developer to meet or contributre to the cost of providing or improving such
situations.

Policy D1 - Architecture and Placemaking

Seeks to ensure high standards of design, with due consideration to context and
that a positive contribution to the setting is made. Factors such as scale,
massing, colour, materials, details, the proportions of building elements and
landscaping will be carefully considered.

Policy D2 - Design and Amenity
Sets out design and layout criteria be addressed in new residential
developments.

Policy H3 - Density

All residential developments over one hectare must:

1. Meet a minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare (net). Net
dwelling density includes those areas which will be developed for housing
and directly associated uses, including access roads within the site, garden
ground and incidental open space;

2. Consider the site’s characteristics and those of the surrounding area;

3. Create an attractive residential environment and safeguard living
conditions within the development; and

4. Consider providing higher densities in the City Centre, around local
centres, and public transport nodes.

Policy H5 - Affordable Housing

Page 40



Housing developments of five or more units are required to contribute no less
than 25% of the total number of units as affordable housing. Supplementary
Guidance provides more detailed information.

Policy NE4 - Open Space Provision in New Development

At least 2.8ha of meaningful and useful open space should be provided per 1,000
people in new developments. Supplementary Guidance (Affordable Housing)
provides more detailed information.

Policy NEG6 - Flooding and Drainage

Applications will be required to provide an assessment of flood risk in order to
show that there would be no risk from flooding. A drainage impact assessment is
also required for any development over 10 homes.

Policy NE9 - Access and Informal Recreation

New development should not compromise the integrity of existing or potential
recreational opportunities, core paths, other paths and rights of way. Wherever
appropriate, developments should include new or improved provision for public
access, permeability and/or links to green space for recreation and active travel.

Supplementary Guidance

The Council’s Supplementary Guidance “OP42: West Huxterstone Masterplan”;
“Affordable Housing”; “Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual”;
“‘Open Space” and “Transport and Accessibility” are relevant planning
considerations in the determination of the application.

EVALUATION

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Principle of Residential Use

The Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP) identifies the site as part of an
Opportunity Site (OP42) within Part A of Land Release Policy LR1 with an
indicative allocation of 120 units. The site is also a long-standing housing land
allocation, being included in the previous Aberdeen Local Plan (2008) as
Strategic Housing Land Reserve (SLHR30). These factors reflect an identified
need for housing land in this area and thus there is conformity with the Housing
Land section of SPP. The West Huxterstone Masterplan identifies the site as
suitable for residential development. Lastly, the application is considered to
accord with the Structure Plan objective relating to population growth, by
providing additional housing opportunity and choice. Accordingly, the principle of
residential use on the site is acceptable in terms of development plan
considerations.

Design, Scale, Mix and form of development

‘Designing Places’ sets out the Government’s expectations of the planning
system to deliver high standards of design. It lists what the Government

Page 41



considers to be successful places, including being ‘distinctive’, ‘safe and
pleasant’, ‘easy to get to and move around’ and ‘welcoming’.

The design and the layout of the development generally meets these broad
objectives with the exception that this ‘place’ is not considered to be distinctive in
that the general type of houses are not uncommon with many Dandara
residential developments within Aberdeen. Notwithstanding, ALDP Policy D1
(Architecture and Placemaking) seeks to ensure that all development is designed
with due consideration for its context.

This context is currently that of agricultural land with properties to the immediate
north of the site being a mix of traditional steading and farm house, otherwise
drydash render finished bungalows, 12 and two storey properties are the
common residential style. Otherwise there are a small number of more
vernacular granite built properties in the locality. Although the proposal does not
directly mimic these design types or styles, in respect to the the existing
properties on Fairley Road, the proposed dwellinghouses in that character area
would fit in comfortably, being predominantly 2-storey semi-detached properties
with a white render finish, enclosed by dry stane dykes and low-level hedging,
and are thus considered acceptable. In terms of site context, it is clear that the
introduction of houses of a design and style, typical of Dandara, would not
directly relate to the character of the locality, nor the buildings to the north, but
when taken in the context of the wider Kingswells area, the design and form of
development would generally respect the varying design and finish of dwellings,
as well as the overall character and pattern of development. In this wider context
(including what has been approved on the adjoining site to the east), it is
considered that the approach taken is consistent and therefore acceptable in
terms of ALDP Policy D1.

The layout of the development is generally in keeping with what is shown in the
Masterplan as regards: access, landscaped areas and general plotting. An
attempt has been made to ensure that the internal layout of the develoment is
designed so as to give priority to pedestrians and cyclists, rather than motorised
vehicles through the inclusion of ‘homezone’ design principles and a meandering
internal road, in keeping with the thrust of ‘Designing Streets’. Embedded in the
design is a desire to ensure the development is a ‘safe’ place.

By virtue of the layout and design of the application site, as discussed above, it is
also considered that the proposal complies with ALDP Policy D2 (Design and
Amenity) in respect of: provision of public and private faces to the development;
making the most of natural sun/daylight; providing useable private gardens and
other ‘sitting out’ areas; and designing out crime.

Although the development falls below the threshhold for ALDP Policy H4
(Housing Mix) to be a material consideration, it is worth noting that the proposal
comprises a mix of 2 — 4 bedroom properties, which are 2-storeys in height and
vary between terraced, semi and detached properties. It is considered that the
proposed mix of properties throughout the site is varied.

Page 42



With regards the affordable housing element, ALDP Policy H5 (Affordable
Housing) and the supplementaty guidance on the same seeks on-site provision
of 25%. The application seeks to provide 9 units on-site (c.20%). The remaining
5% (2.5 units) would be addressed by way of a commuted sum to be included in
the section 75 legal agreement. Although the on-site provision is less than the
stated policy target, the planning authority accepts the approach, and is in line
with what relates to the site to the east. The location and design of the affordable
units is also considered to fit comfortably with the rest of the development, in an
attempt to avoid distinction between tenures. As such there are no conflicts with
regards SPP, PAN 2/2012, the Council’s Supplementary Guidance and Policy on
Affordable Housing.

In terms of density, ALDP policy H3 (Density) seeks to ensure a minimum of 30
dwellings per hectare, which is net of any land not directly related to the housing.
The development would provide 46 dwellings on an area of land of around 1.6ha
in size, resulting in a gross density of 28.75. Taking account the open space
provision of around 0.288ha, the net provision is around 35.06, which is in line
with policy requirements.

The useable open space extends to around 2880sgm (0.288ha) which is
proportionately greater than the expectations for the site, as set out in policy
NE4, the West Huxterstone Masterplan and the Supplmentary Guidance on
Open Space.

Impact on Residential Character and Amenity

The nearest residential properties lie to the immediate north of the site, which are
1 — 1 %-storeys in height. The nearest property to ‘Morven’ would be around 22m
away and the nearest property to the farmhouse at Wester Huxterstone around
30-35m to the south and south east. The physical seperation, boundary
treatment and drop in levels towards the south means that the new houses would
have an acceptable impact on the amenity currently afforded to the residential
dwellings closest to the application site. In terms of the residential character of
the wider area, the proposed development reflects the general form and scale of
development in the locality and is therefore acceptable.

Visual Impact of the Development

The application site is currently undeveloped and without any significant
boundary screening, save for trees within the Den Burn corridor to the south and
some low-level hedging and stone dykes. The site has a reasonable slope, rising
around 5m in height from south to north. It is accepted that the development will
have a substantial visual impact on the exisitng character of the area, given the
site is currently open agricultural land, however it is allocated for development in
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and the Masterplan has a preference for
residential development thereon. The site is prominent when viewed from Fairley
Road and that vista will also see a change in character and feel. With respect to
the wider area, it is not considered that there would be an unacceptably
significant impact due in part to: topography; landscaping; existing buildings; and
the design approach taken.

Page 43



Traffic Impacts, Access Arrangements and Car Parking

A Transport Assessment (TA) was submitted in support of the application and
was updated through discussions with the Roads Projects Team. Following a
review of the junction modelling, it is considered that the application would not
have any significant impact on the surrounding road network and so there are no
objections from the Roads Projects Team in that respect.

In relation to vehicular access, this would be from a junction onto Fairley Road,
which is considered adequate for the number of units proposed and there is no
technical need for a second access.

Pedestrian access to the site would be from Fairley Road, at the main vehicular
junction and also at the northern end of the site adjacent to the boundary of
Wester Huxterstone farmhouse, which would link with the Kingswells Avenue to
Old Skene Road core path. Pedestrian access to the east is proposed at two
points: off the northern ‘homezone’; and at the vehicular access link, to the
adjacent approved development.

The car parking provision has been evaluated and is considered to be
satisfactory.

Given the above, it is considered that there are no conflicts in relation to ALDP
Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development).

Site Drainage and Flooding

The drainage proposals submitted have been ratified by Roads and Flooding
officers and no objections have been forthcoming. For the most part, the
information provided is acceptable. However, some clarification relating to how
the car parking and access roads will be treated can be dealt with as part of the
suspensive condition requiring the submission of updated drainage proposals
and via the RCC process.

With regards flooding, the plans originally proposed three houses on the southern
side of the access road, within the Den Burn flood plain. The Council’s ‘flooding’
team objected to that proposal on the basis that it could potentially increase flood
risk at this section of the Den Burn. In order to allow the application to progress,
the plans were amended to remove these properties and discussions are on-
going with a view to finding an acceptable solution. Any further future proposals
for the development of this area will be assessed on their merits, taking account
of the integrity and value of the open space, sence of place, overall design
objectives and any other material considerations.

School Capacity

The indicative capacity of Kingswells Primary is 450 pupils with the current role at
441. Although this provides some capacity on paper, advice from ACC Education
indicates that the school is full as a result of recent internal configuration changes
which have impacted on non-teaching spaces (library and dining areas for
example) which have been converted into teaching space. It is also considered
that the potential for extension is limited. Notwithstanding, the development of
site OP42 has historically been incorporated into the school role forcasts.

Page 44



The capacity issues at Kingswells Primary, as set out above, could be mitigated
via a developer contributions package to be used for the purposes of expanding
Kingswells Primary or transporting children to another school and secured
through the s75 legal agreement. A small developer contribution has been
requested by the PG Team in respect of education.The developer has indicated
that the site would be built in phases: with 21 being before the end of 2014 and
the remainder in 2015 which would help limit the scale of impact on the school
and this is generally in line with the school forcasts.

Relevant planning matters raised by the community council

1. a) information has been provided which demonstrates that 2 access off
Fairley Road could not be accomodated and this was confirmed by the
Roads Project Team; b) the affordable units proposed on this part of the
overall OP42 site differ in style and tenure from what was approved in the
adjacent application for Stewart Milne, although it is accepted that they
comprise 9 two bed mid-terraced properties; c) this has been dealt with in
the school capacity section above.

2. Phasing is proposed and is discussed in the school capacity section

above;

School capacity issues are discussed above;

The open space proposed is around 0.288ha in size which is in excess of

what was expected for this portion of the OP42 site, as indicated within the

approved Masterplan;

5. The plans have been updated to show a new drystane dyke at the
entrance, which is considered to be in the spirit of the OP42 Masterplan
‘gateway’;

6. The submitted plans show ‘homezone’ areas within the application site,
which are considered to be in the spirit of the OP42 Masterplan.

> W

Relevant planning matters raised in written representations
In relation to the points raised in written representations; the following comments
are raised;

1. The plans have been updated to show the internal road laid out such that
it links with / adjoins the Stewart Milne application site and associated road
network to the east;

2. A flood risk assessment has been submitted and assessed by the relevant
officers. Subsequent to that, the plans have been amended to remove the
houses from south of the access road;

3. A drainage impact assessment has been submitted in support of the
application and a condition has been attached requiring the submission of
detailed drainage details for the site and that these be agreed with the
relevant technical officers.

Proposed legal agreement for developer contributions

A section 75 legal agreement can secure: (1) on-site provision of 9no affordable
housing units; (2) contributions towards the ‘Strategic Transport Fund’; (3)
developer contributions towards: affordable housing; education facilities;
community and recreation facilities; core path networ